THE "CALL IN" PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON TUESDAY, 9 NOVEMBER 2010. MINUTE NO.S 127(1) AND 135(2) ARE NOT SUBJECT TO "CALL-IN"

CABINET

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, BOOTLE ON THURSDAY 28TH OCTOBER, 2010

PRESENT: Councillor Robertson (in the Chair)

Councillors Booth, Brodie - Browne, Fairclough, Maher, Moncur, Parry, Porter and Tattersall

123. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received from Councillor P. Dowd.

124. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair reported that he had agreed that the Cabinet would consider the item on the proposed development of a zoned waste and recycling collection service (Minute No. 139) as an urgent item, in view of the proposed timescales for the implementation of the service.

125. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following declarations of interest were received:

Member/ Officer	Minute No.	Reason	Action
Councillor Porter	129 - Basic Need 2010/11 - Additional Scheme	Personal - she is a Governor at Shoreside Primary School	Took part in the consideration of the item and voted thereon
Councillor Porter	130 - Schools Access Initiative Funding 2010/11	Personal - she is Chair of the Governors at Merefield Special School	Took part in the consideration of the item and voted thereon
Mr. D. Roberts	143 - Partial Restructure of the Schools Advisory Service	Personal - he is affected by the proposals	Stayed in the room but took no part in the consideration of the item

126. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED:

That the Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 30 September 2010 be confirmed as a correct record.

127. TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME AND INITIAL BUDGET OPTIONS

Further to Minute No. 109 of the meeting held on 30 September 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Executive which provided an update on the Transformation Programme and Prioritisation Process, and sought approval for some initial budget options to reduce the 2011/12 - 2013/14 budget gap. The report also provided details of the emerging risks association with externally funded activities.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the Council be recommended to give approval to the specific budget proposals set out in Appendix A of the report;
- (2) Officers be authorised to prepare for the implementation of the proposals immediately pending final decisions of the Council; and
- (3) the progress on the Prioritisation Process related to external funding and in particular the level of risk associated with currently funded activities be noted.

128. YOUTH CAPITAL FUND - PROPOSED ADDITIONAL SCHEME 2010/11

Further to Minute No. 50 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Children's Services, held on 26 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Strategic Director - Children, Schools and Families seeking approval to the implementation of a scheme to be funded from the Youth Capital Fund Allocation for 2010/11.

RESOLVED:

That the scheme be included in the Children, Schools and Families Capital Programme 2010/11.

129. BASIC NEED 2010/11 - ADDITIONAL SCHEME

Further to Minute No. 51 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Children's Services held on 26 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Strategic Director - Children, Schools and Families seeking

approval to the implementation of a scheme to be funded from the Basic Need (New Pupil Places) Allocation for 2010/11.

RESOLVED:

That the scheme be included in the Children, Schools and Families Capital Programme 2010/11.

130. SCHOOLS ACCESS INITIATIVE FUNDING 2010/11

Further to Minute No. 52 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Children's Services held on 26 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Strategic Director - Children, Schools and Families seeking approval to the implementation of a scheme to be funded from the Schools Access Initiative Allocation for 2010/11.

RESOLVED:

That the scheme be included in the Children, Schools and Families Capital Programme 2010/11.

131. TOWARDS A LOW CARBON AND RENEWABLE ENERGY NETWORK FOR THE LIVERPOOL CITY REGION

The Cabinet considered the joint report of the Strategic Director - Communities and the Planning and Economic Development Director on proposals for the development of a Low Carbon and Renewable Energy Network for the Liverpool City Region funded through the Department of Communities and Local Government Climate Change Local Area Support Programme.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the proposals set out in the report be supported; and
- (2) approval be given to Sefton Council being the Accountable Body for the sub-regional project, to be hosted and managed by the Merseyside Environmental Advisory Service.

132. ASSET MANAGEMENT REPORT 2010

The Cabinet considered the report of the Strategic Director - Communities which incorporated a copy of the Asset Management Report for 2010 which outlined the value and condition of the Council's property assets, the management arrangements and provided a summary of activity and outcome delivered in the preceding year.

RESOLVED: That

(1) the Asset Management Report be approved;

- (2) a further report on the review of the asset management arrangements in Sefton be submitted to a future meeting of the Cabinet; and
- (3) it be noted that a new Corporate Asset Management Plan will be produced in the current municipal year and be submitted to the Cabinet in due course.

133. SOUTHPORT PIER - PROPOSED STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT AND MAINTENANCE OPTION APPRAISAL

The Cabinet considered the report of the Environmental and Technical Services Director on proposals for the inclusion of a scheme to undertake a structural assessment and maintenance option appraisal of the Southport Pier in the Capital Programme.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the inclusion in the Leisure and Tourism Capital Programme 2010/11 of a sum of £20,000 for a new scheme to carry out structural assessment and maintenance option appraisal works at Southport Pier. The funding for this work to be provided entirely from the Southport Pier Maintenance Sinking Fund.

134. REGIONAL COASTAL MONITORING PROGRAMME FOR 2011-2015 PROCUREMENT STRATEGY

Further to Minute No. 60 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Environmental held on 20 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Environmental and Technical Services Director on the proposed procurement strategy for the Regional Coastal Monitoring Programme for 2011-2015.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the establishment of a framework for regional coastal monitoring activities, as set out in the report.

135. PROTOCOL FOR LIFTING THE MORATORIUM ON THE SITING OF MOBILE PHONE MASTS ON COUNCIL LAND

Further to Minute No. 118 of the meeting held on 2 September 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Environmental and Technical Services Director on the implications of amending the draft protocol to govern the lifting of the current moratorium on the siting of telephone transmission masts on Council owned land by including the Area Committees in the site selection and consultation process and by delegating to the relevant Area Committee the decision to authorise the use of Council land for the siting of telephone transmission masts.

This was a Key Decision and was included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) approval be given to the revised protocol set out in the report and to the delegation of decision making on the use of Council land for the siting of telephone transmission masts to the relevant Area Committee; and
- (2) the Council be recommended to amend Part 3 of the Council Constitution (Responsibility for Functions) by the inclusion of the following text:

"AREA COMMITTEES - Specific Delegations

Environmental and Technical Services

1. Determination of applications for permission to site mobile phone masts on Council owned land within the Wards covered by the Area Committee, in accordance with the Council's protocol."

136. GAS AND ELECTRICITY SUPPLY CONTRACTS

The Cabinet considered the report of the Environmental and Technical Services Director on proposals to implement an extension to the current energy supply contracts for gas and electricity to take advantage of market prices and enable sufficient transition time to implement the review of the Council's energy procurement which is currently underway and to realign delegated authority for this function.

RESOLVED: That

- approval be given to the waiving of the Council Contract Procedure Rules in relation to seeking price offers from incumbent suppliers to extend the contract under renewed tariffs;
- (2) the Environmental and Technical Services Director be granted delegated powers to accept the price offer which is economically the most advantageous for the Council and to award the contract extension accordingly for six or twelve months; and
- (3) the Environmental and Technical Services Director report the results of the contract price renewal exercise and his actions to a future meeting of the Cabinet.

137. PROPOSALS FOR VICTORIA PARK, CROSBY

Further to Minute No. 34 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Leisure and Tourism held on 6 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of

the Leisure and Tourism Director on proposals to undertake improvement works at Victoria Park, Crosby.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the inclusion of the scheme for improvements to Victoria Park in the Leisure and Tourism Capital Programme 2010/11 up to the value of £116,218 only.

138. CONTRACT FOR THE SUPPLY OF FROZEN PREPARED MEALS FOR THE COMMUNITY MEALS SERVICE

Further to Minute No. 59 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Environmental held on 20 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Operational Services Director on the tenders received for the supply of frozen prepared meals for the Community Meals Service via a service level agreement with Sefton New Directions.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the award of the contract to the School Meals and Catering Section for the period from 1 November 2010 to 31 October 2013 with two further options of one year.

139. DEVELOPMENT OF A ZONED WASTE AND RECYCLING COLLECTION SYSTEM

Further to Minute No. 49 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Environmental held on 29 September 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Operational Services Director on proposals to change the existing collection arrangements for residual and recyclable waste by the introduction of a zoned waste collection service from January 2011.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the implementation of a new zoned system of waste and recycling collection from January 2011.

140. LICENCE TO DEMOLISH PROPERTIES IN THE KLONDYKE AREA BETWEEN SEFTON COUNCIL AND ADACTUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION

Further to Minute No. 54 of the meeting of the Cabinet Member - Regeneration held on 27 October 2010, the Cabinet considered the report of the Neighbourhoods and Investment Programmes Director on proposals for the Council to enter into a licence to allow the Council to demolish vacant properties in the Klondyke area of South Sefton in the ownership of Adactus Housing Association.

RESOLVED:

That approval be given to the Council entering into a licence to allow the Council to demolish vacant properties owned by Adactus Housing Association in the Klondyke area of South Sefton, subject to the financial resources being available to do so.

141. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That

- (1) under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. The Public Interest Test has been applied and favours exclusion of the information from the press and public; and
- the representatives of the Trade Unions be permitted to remain in the meeting during consideration of Minute No.s 142 and 143.

142. COMMUNITIES DIRECTORATE - DEPARTMENTAL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURE

The Cabinet considered the joint report of the Strategic Director - Communities and the Interim Head of Corporate Personnel on proposals to establish a framework for the restructure of departments and Senior Management within the Communities Directorate.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the proposals to establish a revised structure for the Communities Directorate, as referred to in the report and detailed at Annex C, be endorsed:
- (2) the appointment procedures set out in paragraphs 3.2 and 3.3 of the report be approved;
- it be noted that the changes to the structure will contribute £250,000 of savings as part of the 2011/12 budget; and
- (4) it be noted that, in accordance with the Responsibility for Functions provided in the Council's Constitution, the personnel implications described in the report have been approved by the Interim Head of Corporate Personnel, in consultation with the Strategic Director -Communities.

143. PARTIAL RESTRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOLS ADVISORY SERVICE

The Cabinet considered the joint report of the Strategic Director - Communities and the Interim Head of Corporate Personnel on proposals to establish a revised structure for the Schools Advisory Service in the Children, Schools and Families Directorate.

RESOLVED: That

- (1) the proposals to establish a revised structure for the Schools Advisory Service, set out in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.8 and Annex 2 of the report, be endorsed;
- (2) the appointment procedures set out in paragraphs 3.5 to 3.7 of the report be approved;
- (3) it be noted that the changes to the structure will assist in contributing to savings over the period of the Strategic Budget Review;
- (4) approval be given to the change in designation of the service from the Schools Advisory Service to Schools and Settings Improvement Service; and
- (5) it be noted that, in accordance with the Responsibility for Functions provided in the Council's Constitution, the personnel implications described in the report have been approved by the Interim Head of Corporate Personnel, in consultation with the Strategic Director Children, Schools and Families.